
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama 

 
Date: MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING (ACCESSIBLE REMOTELY) 

 
Members: Professor Geoffrey Crossick (Chairman) 

Randall Anderson (Deputy Chairman) 
John Chapman 
Christopher Costigan 
Michael Herington 
Dr Paula Haynes 
 

 

 
Enquiries: julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
 

Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: 
https://youtu.be/DovSaw_CMdw 

 
This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical 
location following regulations made under Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020. A 
recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of the 
public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do 
not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on 
the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of 
the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/DovSaw_CMdw


2 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 22nd January 2021. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 8) 

 
4. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 

 Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 30) 

 
5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
  

Part 2 - Non Public Agenda 
 
8. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 22nd January 2021. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 31 - 34) 

 
9. RISK REGISTER 
 

 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 35 - 100) 

 



3 
 

10. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA 

Friday, 22 January 2021  
 

Minutes of the meeting streamed to You Tube at 2.30pm 
https://youtu.be/_6oOpuEuy3k 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Professor Geoffrey Crossick (Chairman) 
Randall Anderson (Deputy Chairman) 
John Chapman 
Christopher Costigan 
Michael Herington 
Dr Paula Haynes 
 
In attendance: 
Vivienne Littlechild (Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music 
and Drama) 

 
Officers: 
Lynne Williams 
Jonathan Vaughan 
Katharine Lewis 
Graham Hood 

- Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Guildhall School/Barbican Centre 

Jonathan Poyner - Guildhall School/Barbican Centre 

Matthew Lock - Head of Audit and Risk Management, Chamberlain's  

Cirla Peall 
Julie Mayer 

- Chamberlains 
- Town Clerks 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
There were no apologies 
 
Introduction by the Chairman 
Before today’s meeting, the Chairman had sought clarity in respect of the status 
of some of the reports on the agenda and thanked officers for their helpful 
responses.  The Committee noted that these points would be referenced as we 
moved through the agenda items. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED, that – the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting 
held on 11th November 2020 be approved.  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Matters arising 
At the last meeting, the Committee had discussed and proposed some 
amendments to strengthen and update the Committee’s Terms of Reference.  
The Board had approved the revised version without comment and the Town 
Clerk agreed to circulate this to the Committee. 
 

4. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
The Committee received its Annual Report and the Chairman explained that, as 
last year’s audit activity had ended on 31st July 2020, the immediate past 
Chairman had commented on the draft report and signed it off.  The Audit and 
Risk Management Committee was required to approve the report formally, 
before it was presented to the Office for Students (OfS) and the Board of 
Governors.   Two existing Members, who had also served on the Committee in 
2019/2020, were satisfied as to its content.   
 
The Chairman noted a couple of drafting errors, which would be corrected 
before the report was submitted to the OfS : 
 
• BDO provided the School with an independent accountants’ report and the 

terminology should reflect this.    
• Some documents referenced, which would not be included in the OfS 

submission, should be removed. 
• Paragraph 20 read as if it was a paper to the Committee and not from the 

Committee. 
• Paragraph 21 should refer to 31st July 2019 and not 2020. 
• The meeting on 2nd September 2020 had been listed, but this was after 

the 31 July 2020 cut-off date and should be removed.  
 
The Chairman felt that the report in its current format felt somewhat process 
driven and, for future reports, would welcome more detail on that year’s internal 
audit work, with a focus on successful outcomes. The Chairman noted that this 
information was included in the Annual Internal Audit Report and suggested 
that a summary could be extracted and added to the Annual Report of the 
Committee. 
 
In terms of the Audit Plan, the Committee had agreed to consider Academic 
Assurance in 2021/22 and not 2020/21.  The scheduling of the Governance and 
Data Quality Internal Audits would be considered in the next item on the 
agenda. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be approved for submission to the Office for 
Students. 
 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
The Committee received the Internal Audit Update and noted that, further to 
Members’ suggestions, a new reporting template would be in place for all future 
Internal Audit Reports, as the most recently completed report was already in 
draft form at the last meeting.  
 
During the discussion and questions, the following points were noted: 

Page 2



a) There was a high level of uncertainty in respect of the School’s operations 
as a result of the pandemic.  However, the Internal Audit Team was able to 
offer flexibility in terms of re-prioritising and were in regular discussions with 
the School.   Further input from the Committee in terms of priorities was 
welcomed.  

 
b) In respect of follow ups on audit recommendations, the Committee noted 

that 3 out of 4 of the current live recommendations were due to complete at 
the end of the month, and the Head of Audit and Risk Management was 
content with progress on the 4th.  The Committee noted that two audit 
reviews were nearing completion;  the first would be the Facilities 
Management Joint Review with the Barbican Centre, which would help to 
shape the wider strategy.   

 
c) Internal Audit’s assurance on the quality of data submitted to external 

bodies was necessary but, unless there were specific areas of concern, 
then it should take the form of sample testing, as happens with the financial 
controls.  Whilst Transparent Approach to Costing (TRAC) was not based 
on large amounts of student data, as is the case with some returns, its 
broader findings are still of interest to the Committee.  

 
d) The last audit of data quality was the Student HESA Data Return, with 

other statutory returns due for review next.      The Committee agreed that 
the Board needed broad assurance on the quality of data being passed on 
externally, and the relevant officers and Chairman agreed to discuss offline 
how this review might be taken forward.   

 
e) Staff responsible for compiling the Student Affairs Annual Report had been 

fully engaged in other work, as a result of a significant change in operations 
due to the pandemic.  The Committee fully understood the circumstances, 
and asked the relevant officers to meet offline to agree on a 
reasonable/achievable target date and then update the Committee by 
email.  The Committee accepted that circumstances were likely to change 
again and a further adjustment to the target date might be necessary. 

 
f) Last year’s budget report had required an immediate re-write due to the 

pandemic.  However, work underway in respect of the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan would evidence this and allow for it to be signed off.    The 
Principal took this opportunity to commend staff for their professionalism 
and prompt responses in such difficult circumstances, which had helped to 
keep the School in a strong position.   

 
g) Whilst it was desirable for an Audit Plan to be agreed before the start of the 

new Financial Year, the Committee noted that a lot of work was ongoing in 
respect of the wider City programme and, therefore, the Internal Audit 
Team would not be working to a hard deadline of 31st March 2021.   Given 
the relatively small size of the School’s Audit Programme and existing 
pressures on staff, the Head of Audit and Risk Management advised that 
finalising the Audit Plan at the next meeting would not adversely impact 
delivery in the coming year.    

Page 3



h) In respect of potential themes for next year, it was noted that the last 
meeting of the Committee had agreed to defer Governance and HESA 
Data Futures.    An officer explained that the Sector and the School were 
still working towards Data Futures, but the final implementation dates were 
still unclear.  Even this year, the School had not yet been advised of this 
year’s Student HESA return due to Covid.  The Officer suggested that 
HESA Data Futures could not really be audited until the School had 
completed and submitted a return, but the Committee would be kept up to 
date in terms of preparedness.     

 
i) In respect of Governance, the Committee noted that the Lisvane Review 

would be effective from April 2022, with some aspects completed before 
then.   The Principal advised that, in terms of the Target Operating Model 
(TOM), consultation was expected over the summer with transformation set 
for December.   The Principal had raised concerns about the timing and risk 
of slippage with the Town Clerk and the TOM lead Member and felt that, 
given the governance implications for the School, TOM and Lisvane should 
be progressed at the same time.  The Committee agreed to pencil this in for 
consideration late in 2022. 

 
j) In terms of the Medium-Term Financial Plan, the Committee noted that 

current fieldwork was looking at progress.  It was suggested that it would be 
helpful to look at how we were measuring progress against KPIs, targets 
and objectives, specifically in terms of the discussions with the City in 
respect of the investment the School was seeking, and projects emerging in 
the second phase of the Plan.   

 
k) The Business Plan was now effectively a 2-year recovery plan, with years 

3-5 looking at where the School needed to be over the medium term.  If the 
School was unable to resume its summer programme, then it would most  
likely need redrafting.  The Committee fully understood this position and 
suggested that, as this was a business-critical piece of work, it should be 
considered in a way that would be helpful to  management and the Board, 
with the exact date to be determined in due course. 

 
l) The Chairman suggested that the possibility and timing of a shorter review 

on internationalisation be discussed at the next meeting.   
 
m) In respect of Academic Assurances, the Chairman suggested that 

academic strategy might helpfully  reflect the changes to teaching practices 
as a result of the pandemic, and the good  practices that could  be taken 
forward.   The Principal advised that that this needed defining beyond just 
the HE academic offer; i.e. - access and participation, under 18s  
progression pathways, and short courses etc.   A new Associate Dean for 
Teaching and Learning was in post, and compiling a new teaching and 
learning strategy, but progress was being hindered by Covid as the work 
had shifted to more immediate quality assurance concerns.  The 
Committee agreed that  Internal Audit be engaged in a  review, at the 
appropriate time, in terms of  developing the strategy (or elements within 
the strategy) and testing their robustness.  The Principal and Vice Principal 

Page 4



agreed to discuss a possible timeline and scope with the Head of Audit and 
Risk management, noting the impact of the pandemic over next 6-9 months 
and the need for flexibility.   

 
In concluding, the Head of Audit and Risk Management stressed that, at the 
very least, management should find internal audit assurances useful, but the 
work is necessary in terms of the City of London Corporation’s requirements.   
Additionally, in order to comply with the governance requirements of the 
School, as specified by the Regulator, the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
was required to provide an assurance opinion at the end of the year.   The 
governance process should also give consideration to the more routine audit 
work around the basic aspects of the control framework.  The Committee noted 
that there was less detailed work on the School’s internal control framework, 
than would be the case in other higher education institutions, as a lot of this 
work was picked up by the City Corporation’s main accounting processes.  
However, this was likely to change if the School gained more autonomy as a 
result of the outcome of the TOM and Lisvane Reviews.      
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 
 

6. ANNUAL FINANCIAL RETURN TO THE OFFICE FOR STUDENTS  
The Committee received a report of the Principal in respect of the Annual 
Financial Return to the Office for Students.  The Committee noted that the 
Finance Committee had recommended the statements for submission to the 
OfS earlier in the week, subject to a couple of minor drafting errors.   Whilst this 
was not a conventional set of financial statements, given the School’s 
relationship with the City of London Corporation, the Chairman stated that it 
was appropriate for the Audit and Risk Committee to receive them, prior to their 
submission to the OfS and the Board.   The  Group Accountant explained that 
this return is, in many respects, a ‘receipts and payments’ style report and very 
different to regular charitable or higher education reports.  Furthermore, given 
the School’s relationship with the City of London Corporation, it was in a 
reassuring position in respect of ‘going concern’ assurance.   
 
The Chairman welcomed BDO to the meeting, who explained that the 
completion report was the equivalent of a ‘management letter’.  The Committee 
noted that BDO had provided a reasonable assurance report, which had less 
scope than a full external audit, and that the wider audit of the City of London 
Corporation considered the systems and controls in place.  BDO explained that 
their report ensured that the accounts had been correctly extracted from the 
books and records of the City of London and that  funds from the OfS and 
Research England had been applied for the purposes intended.  Furthermore,  
the OfS decided on the appropriate level of assurance which they required from 
the School, and not BDO.  BDO’s judgement was set out in the completion 
report.  The Committee noted a couple of minor outstanding non-material 
matters, which were due to be resolved before the Board Meeting on 15th 
February 2021, and that the work was substantially complete.  
 

Page 5



In response to questions,  the Committee noted that US Federal Aid was a 
compliance audit relating to students from the US studying at the School, who 
could claim loans from their respective Department of Education, which were 
then dispersed by the School. 
    
The Group Accountant explained that the alignment of the submission date of 
the financial statements to the Office for Students, with the City of London 
Corporation’s 31st March year-end, would bring added assurance.  The 
Committee noted that, currently, BDO and finance officers were required to 
consider 8 months of audited accounts from the School and 4 months of 
unaudited data from City.  By aligning the dates, it would be possible to use 
data lifted directly from the Audited City’s Cash Account.  However, under 
existing arrangements, the BDO report still highlighted any issues.   
 
The Chairman suggested the following amendments: 
  

• Challenges of uncertainty in respect of Higher Education Policy and Brexit 
should extend to Covid (as set out on p 40).    

 

• The Statement of Corporate Governance would need to be checked, as it 
appeared to be out of date in terms of the frequency of meetings of the 
Governance and Effectiveness Committee. It should also reference that the 
new CUC Code of Governance was being used, and not the 2014 version.   

 

• The 100% fall in undergraduate students should say part-time undergraduate 
students (p104, section 6)   

 
RESOLVED, that - The Audit and Risk Management Committee approve the 
return and authorise the Group Accountant to submit it to the Office for 
Students, noting the approval of the Finance Committee on 19th January 2021, 
and in accordance with the filing requirements. 
 

7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no urgent items.  
 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
as follows:- 
 
Item Paragraph 
11-15 3 

 
 

Page 6



10. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 11th November 2020 were 
approved.  
 

11. ANNUAL TRANSPARENT APPROACH TO COSTING (TRAC) RETURN FOR 
THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 
At 4.28 pm, the Committee agreed to waive standing orders and extend the 
meeting in order to conclude the business on the agenda.  
 

12. RISK REGISTER  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 

13. CYBER SECURITY UPDATE  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 

14. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no urgent items.  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 4.35pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Julie mayer 
julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 
School of Music & Drama 

26/04/2021 
  

Subject: Internal Audit Update Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding? N/A 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Head of Audit & Risk Management For Information 

Report author: Cirla Peall, Audit Manager 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report has been prepared to provide Members with an update in respect of 
Internal Audit activity related to the Guildhall School since the January meeting of 
this Committee. Audit Plan delivery has progressed in respect of 2020-21 and is 
supplemented by prompt Internal Audit follow-up of recommendations made to 
enable the provision of a revised assurance opinion for each audit.   
 
As at mid-April 2021 there are no live red priority recommendations and two live 
amber priority recommendations which are overdue against their original and revised 
target dates.  
 
 Recommendation(s)  

Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the report 

• Consider the appropriateness of the delays in recommendation implementation 

• Note the update in respect of the 2021 Internal Audit Charter  

• Note the proposed areas of audit coverage for 2021-22 
 

Main Report 

Background 
 
1. This Committee receives regular updates in respect of delivery of Internal Audit 

work and the implementation of Audit recommendations.   
 

2. A summary of outcomes is reported for finalised audit work i.e. where full 
management responses have been received and agreed, and there is a reminder 
of the scope of audit for those audits where draft reports have been issued and 
management responses are awaited.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



3. In terms of high priority recommendations, this report provides Members with the 
latest implementation position, based upon information received from Guildhall 
School management and audit follow-up undertaken. 

 
Current Position 

Delivery of Internal Audit Work 
 
4. The status of 2020-21 Plan delivery is outlined in Appendix 1 and reflects the 

amendments to the plan agreed at previous meetings of this Committee.  The 
profile of delivery across the year has been impacted by Covid-19.  Progress to 
date in respect of the updated Plan comprises finalisation of three audits and 
draft reporting in respect of the remaining audit, concluding work against the 
2020-21 audit plan.  

 
5. At the request of this Committee, three audit reviews were removed from the 

2020-21 plan and added to the 2021-22 plan: Governance, Data Futures and 
Data Quality. The Head of Audit and Risk Management has liaised with the 
School’s preferred external provider of internal audit services and has confirmed 
their capacity to undertake the data quality work in June/July 2021 with the 
precise scope to be agreed as part of the engagement planning.   

 
Facilities Management & Maintenance - Final Report Issued 
 
6. The objective of this joint audit between the School and the Barbican Centre was 

to evaluate the Facilities Management arrangements, including structures, 
contracts and policies, and the maintenance arrangements to ensure the 
provision of suitable facilities that are safe, compliant and well-managed. The 
scope of the audit focused on: 

 
• Strategies, policies and procedures. 
• Programmed maintenance. 
• Responsive repairs and maintenance. 
• Health and safety risk management and statutory compliance. 
• Performance management. 
• Financial management. 
 

7. The audit provided moderate assurance with recommendations raised to 
strengthen control in respect of the following areas: 

 

• The process for identifying new maintainable assets and maintainable assets 
that are no longer in use and approving their inclusion and removal from the 
Programmed Maintenance schedules. 

• Reactive repair requests are required to be appropriately authorised, prior to 
being assigned to suitable operatives. There is a system in place for 
prioritising repairs. 

• Ensuring that the premises are compliant with Health and Safety Legislation and that 
statutorily required maintenance is delivered.  

• Members and Senior Management monitoring of financial performance in relation to 
delivery of Programmed and Reactive Maintenance. 

Page 10



Recommendations Red Amber Green Total 

Number Made: 0 13 1 14 

 
8. Recommendation details are shown at Appendix 2.  All recommendations were 

agreed by management for implementation between May and September 2021; 
Internal Audit follow-up will be undertaken in October 2021. 

 
Medium Term Financial Planning – Final Report Issued 
 
9. The objective of this audit was to provide assurance that adequate arrangements 

are in place for the following: 
 

• A timetable for the creation, review and sign off of the School's MTFP is in 
place with responsibilities clearly defined and discharged effectively.  

• An effective approach to developing the School’s MTFP is in place, including 
a clear and transparent process that considers key budget holders’ 
contribution. 

• Appropriate assumptions are made as part of the planning process and these 
are clearly documented. 

• The process for developing the MTFP ensures effective alignment between 
the MTFP and the key strategic objectives and priorities of the school. 

 
10. The audit provided substantial assurance with a single recommendation raised 

to develop, approve and circulate a timetable for the creation, review and sign off 
of the School's MTFP, including clear definition of responsibilities. 
 

Recommendations Red Amber Green Total 

Number Made: 0 1 0 1 

 
11. Details of the recommendation are shown at Appendix 2 and reflect agreement 

by management for implementation by June 2021.   
 
Guildhall Young Artists 
 
12. The draft report for this audit has been circulated, the scope of which was to 

obtain assurance in respect of the following: 
 

• Mechanisms to support strategic delivery that include: translation of Strategy 
into SMART objectives and related action plans, with clear prioritisation and 
assignment of ownership; effective governance; and monitoring of strategy 
execution against defined objectives, adapting / taking corrective action 
where appropriate. 

 

• Creation of a safeguarding culture where there is: prompt identification and 
communication of safeguarding requirements to all relevant parties; 
maintenance of policies and procedures which align fully with safeguarding 
guidance; arrangements for monitoring safeguarding compliance and 
ensuring that necessary corrective action is undertaken on a timely basis; 

Page 11



mechanisms for obtaining assurance that third party responsibilities are being 
met; and effective oversight of safeguarding activities. 

 

• Key financial controls to ensure the effective use of resources. 
 
13. A summary of the outcome of this audit will be reported to this Committee 

following report finalisation. 
 

Audit Plan 2021-22 
 
14. It was agreed at the November 2020 meeting of this Committee that two audits 

from the 2020-21 Plan would be deferred: Governance and Data Futures.  
Members proposed at the last meeting of this Committee that the Governance 
audit be further deferred until late 2022 in recognition of the timescales for 
progression of the Target Operating Model and Lisvane reviews.  The timing of 
the Data Futures audit is to be confirmed once the School has completed and 
submitted a return.  
 

15. It is proposed that an audit will be undertaken in 2021-22 in respect of the 
Medium-Term Financial Plan, providing assurance on implementation and 
delivery against this.  The scope of audit will be agreed with management, taking 
into account the suggestion made at the January 2021 meeting of this  
Committee that it would be helpful to look at how progress is measured against 
KPIs, targets and objectives, specifically in terms of the discussions with the City 
in respect of investment sought by the School, and projects emerging in the 
second phase of the Plan. 

 
16. Internal Audit will liaise with the Principal and Vice Principal to discuss the timing 

and scope of a potential audit related to the new Teaching and Learning Strategy, 
as previously proposed by this Committee.  

 
17. An audit of Data Quality is also planned for 2021-22 as part of a rolling 

programme to provide on-going assurance as to the validity of data gathered and 
reported by the School across its various datasets. The timing of this audit is still 
to be agreed, the detailed scope will be determined as part of the initial 
engagement planning. 

 
Live High Priority Recommendations 
 
18. As at mid-April 2021, there are no live red priority recommendations and two 

overdue live amber priority recommendations, as summarised at Appendix 3.  
An updated target timescale has been supplied in one case where there has 
been further implementation slippage against the previous revised target date 
and Internal Audit follow-up will be undertaken promptly in line with this. 
Confirmation is required from Guildhall School management of the timeframes for 
addressing the issue to which the remaining recommendation relates. 

 
19. Internal Audit continues to reiterate the importance of setting realistic timescales 

for demonstrating recommendations implementation. Internal Audit follow-up is 

Page 12



undertaken promptly once target timescales have been reached and a revised 
assurance opinion is provided on the basis of the follow-up outcome. 

 
Corporate & Strategic Implications 
 
20. The overall Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide assurance as to the 

adequacy of the City of London Corporation’s systems of internal control and 
governance.  This programme of activity is aligned with the Corporate Plan, 
Corporate Risk Register and Departmental Top Risks.  The Guildhall School, as 
an institutional department of the Corporation, has a sub-section of the Plan and 
a programme of Internal Audit work that includes audit assignments and regular 
follow-up activity in respect of recommendations implementation.  

 
21. The updated Internal Audit Charter was recently approved by the corporate Audit 

and Risk Management Committee; a copy is provided for information at 
Appendix 4. The Charter, reviewed annually, sets out the purpose, authority, and 
responsibility of the City Corporation’s Internal Audit function, and is prepared in 
accordance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) (2017) 
and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN). 

 
Conclusion 
 
22. Members are asked to note the status of delivery of the 2020-21 Audit Plan, 

details of recently finalised audits, and the live high priority recommendations 
position as at mid-April 2021.  The profile of Plan delivery has been impacted by 
Covid-19 but work is substantially complete against the 2020/21 Internal Audit 
Plan. 
 

23. Follow-up activity is undertaken promptly in line with target recommendation 
timescales and the importance of setting realistic implementation dates has been 
reiterated to management.  
 

24. The Internal Audit Charter has been updated for 2021 and reflects the purpose, 
authority, and responsibility of the City Corporation’s Internal Audit function.  
Areas of audit coverage for the School for 2021-22 have been proposed, 
following earlier discussion at this Committee, and Internal Audit will liaise with 
School management to agree the detailed scope and timing.  
 

Appendices 

• Appendix 1: 2020-21 Guildhall School Audit Plan Progress 

• Appendix 2: Recently Finalised Audit Outcomes 

• Appendix 3: Overdue High Priority Recommendations 

• Appendix 4: Internal Audit Charter 2021 
 

 
Matt Lock 
Head of Audit and Risk Management, Chamberlain’s Department 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Appendix 1 
 

Internal Audit Work 2020-21 
 

Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Internationalisation  
An evaluation of arrangements in place to support delivery of 
strategic aims related to Internationalisation, including mechanisms 
for monitoring, review and reporting of delivery to Senior 
Management and Members. Audit testing sought to obtain 
assurance that adequate mechanisms were in place for the 
following: 
 
• Translation of strategy into SMART objectives and related action 

plans, with clear assignment of ownership and timely 
communication to interested parties. 

• Alignment and prioritisation of resources and action plans in line 
with strategic objectives, including setting of appropriate delivery 
timescales. 

• Strategy execution mechanisms include effective governance 
(management, decision making, responsibilities and reporting), 
risk management, communication and change processes. 

• Monitoring arrangements include measurement of strategy 
execution against defined objectives, adapting / taking corrective 
action where appropriate. Lessons are learned for future activity. 
 

 
Complete 

 
Substantial 

 
0 

 
0 
 

 
2 

 
2 

Facilities Management & Maintenance 
Barbican and Guildhall School: an examination of the Facilities 
Management arrangements, including structures, contracts and 
policies, and the maintenance arrangements to ensure the provision 
of suitable facilities that are safe, compliant and well-managed. 
 

 
Complete 

 
Moderate 

 
0 

 
13 

 
1 

 
14 

P
age 15



Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Guildhall Young Artists 
To provide assurance on the adequacy of arrangements for: 
ensuring alignment of activity with strategy, safeguarding, 
administration, and maintenance of the general control environment. 

 
Draft Report 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Medium Term Financial Planning 
To provide assurance on the adequacy of the approach to preparing 
the Medium-Term Financial Plan and process followed, including 
timetable, roles and responsibilities. 

A second phase of Audit review will be undertaken to provide 
assurance on the implementation of the plan and delivery against 
this - likely to be delivered as part of the 2021-22 Internal Audit Plan. 

 
Complete 

 
Substantial 

 
- 

 
1 

 
0 

 
1 

Data Quality 
Independent verification/validation of data submissions as part of a 
rolling programme. 

 
Deferred 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Governance 
Review of governance arrangements, in-line with industry and 
regulator expectations and requirements 

 
Deferred 

     

Data Futures 
Readiness for and compliance with HESA's Data Futures 
transformation programme. 

 
Deferred 

     

 TOTAL 0 14 3 17 

 

P
age 16



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Barbican Centre and Guildhall School Facilities Management Audit  

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Issue Date: 01/03/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Executive Summary 

Background and Scope 

The Barbican Centre, a Grade II listed building, and Guildhall School, 
with its state-of-the-art performance facilities, have extensive and 
complex repairs and maintenance requirements. Delivery of effective 
repairs and maintenance services is vital in keeping these 
organisations operational. 
 
Currently, repairs and maintenance is delivered under a hybrid model, 
utilising the City of London’s Corporate Building Repairs and 
Maintenance contractor, Skanska, and an internal Engineering Team, 
overseen by the Head of Engineering and Projects. Skanska and the 
Engineering Team utilise the Micad Computer Aided Facilities 
Management system and the Agility Asset Management System 
respectively, to deliver their services. 
 
The objectives of this review were to provide assurance that there are 
adequate arrangements in place for: 
 

▪ devising a suitable long-term Facilities Management Strategy; 
▪ managing delivery of Programmed Maintenance; 
▪ managing delivery of Reactive Maintenance; 
▪ ensuring compliance with Health and Safety Legislation and 

Statutory requirements; 
▪ managing the performance of the Engineering Team; 
▪ managing maintenance expenditure in line with approved 

budgets. 

Summary 

The Audit review found that: 

▪ a suitable long-term Facilities Management Strategy is in 
place; 

▪ there is clear scope to improve the controls in place to ensure 
the effective delivery of both programmed maintenance and 
reactive maintenance; 

▪ there are specific areas of non-compliance with Health and 
Safety Legislation and Statutory requirements; 

▪ there is no performance management framework in place to 
drive performance improvement within the Engineering Team; 

▪ overall, there are adequate arrangements in place for 
managing repairs and maintenance expenditure in line with 
approved budgets. 

 
The following section of the report sets out the outcomes from the 
Audit review and the specific areas for improvement that were 
identified.  Section 2 of the report forms the management action plan 
for addressing the issues raised. 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 

P
age 17



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Barbican Centre and Guildhall School Facilities Management Audit  

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Issue Date: 01/03/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

 

Section 2: Management Action Plan  

Recommendation Management Response 

Introduction from Management: 

As agreed with the Board, we are providing services that are compliant, efficient and appropriate and we have moved ever closer to 
working with the City. This means that in most of the cases below, we have transitioned to the City’s contract, and we will work with the 
City to ever improve the service levels. 

1.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
devise a formal process for approving 
alterations to Programmed Maintenance 
schedules within the Agility System. 

Recommendation accepted. We are working with the City Surveyor on the 
procurement of a new CAFM system (Computer Aided Facilities Management 
System) which should be in place by early 2022. We will therefore follow the 
corporate process for updating planned maintenance schedules. Whilst Agility is 
still in use, we will implement a formal process to do the same. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 31/05/2021 

2.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
ensure that the accuracy and completeness of 
Programmed Maintenance tasks within the 
Micad and Agility systems are periodically 
verified. 

Recommendation accepted. The Engineering Services Manager and team manager 
will be given specific responsibility for ensuring an auditable process is in place.  

 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 31/05/2021 

3.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
ensure that Skanska's performance in 
completing Programmed Maintenance tasks is 
regularly monitored, to ensure Skanska are 
delivering in accordance with contractual 
requirements. 

Recommendation accepted. We will improve the process  for compliance and 
programmed works to take into account performance figures from the 
maintenance contractor. This will be done following the recruitment and induction 
of the new services manager. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

P
age 18



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Barbican Centre and Guildhall School Facilities Management Audit  

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Issue Date: 01/03/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

4.  The Head of Engineering Projects should 
determine appropriate productivity targets and 
wider  performance measures for the 
Engineering Team and implement a framework 
for monitoring performance accordingly, in 
order to drive the necessary improvements in 
performance. 

Recommendation accepted. We will work with the rest of the Corporation to find 
a consistent approach to performance targets for similar teams/activities. This was 
originally raised in the FM Review two years ago but was never resolved. 

 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 30/09/2021 

5.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
implement a framework for monitoring the 
quality of Programmed Maintenance, completed 
by both Skanska and the Engineering Team. 

Recommendation accepted. There are management processes in place by the City 
Surveyor, as this is a corporate contract. We accept that we need to break the 
performance up so that we can better understand the performance at a local level.  

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

6.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
ensure that the skills analysis exercise is 
completed in an appropriate timeframe. 

Recommendation accepted. The team currently has eleven vacancies that we are 
trying to recruit to and induct over the coming months. The skills matrix will be 
completed within a quarter of those posts being filled and inducted. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 30/09/2021 

P
age 19



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Barbican Centre and Guildhall School Facilities Management Audit  

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Issue Date: 01/03/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

7.  
 

The Head of Engineering and projects should 
enhance monitoring arrangements to ensure 
that quoted works are subject to approval prior 
to works being initiated. 

Recommendation partially accepted. The Head of Engineering and Projects believes 
there is a system in place; however, we shall review and formalise said process so 
that we have an improved auditable trail. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 31/05/2021 

8.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
ensure that Skanska's performance in 
completing reactive maintenance tasks on a 
timely basis is regularly monitored to ensure 
conformance to contractual requirements. 

Recommendation accepted. Actions and timescales as per Recommendation 5 
above. 

 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

9.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
implement arrangements for verifying the 
accuracy of reactive maintenance tasks 
recorded as 'completed' in Micad. 

Recommendation partially accepted but agree that the system needs to be 
reviewed and formally documented to have an auditable trail. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 31/05/2021 

10.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
implement a framework for monitoring the 
quality of Reactive Maintenance, completed by 
both Skanska and the Engineering Team. 

Recommendation accepted. Actions and timeframes as per Recommendations 5 
and 8 above. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

 

P
age 20



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Barbican Centre and Guildhall School Facilities Management Audit  

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Issue Date: 01/03/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

11.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
ensure that the completeness of the Asbestos 
Register is subject to regular verification. 

 

Recommendation partially accepted. There is a corporate contract for asbestos re-
inspections and also for ‘asbestos incidents’ and for asbestos refurbishment and 
demolition surveys prior to any works. The corporate contractor is contractually 
obliged to update the register when any new sources are identified and/or delete 
entries when ACMs are removed. The Centre will however work with the City 
Surveyor who procure the central contract and complete it when the new corporate 
contract has been let. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 31/07/2021 

12.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
implement an appropriate action plan to 
ensure that all outstanding all Gas Safety, 
Electrical Safety and Water Management tasks 
are completed. 

Recommendation accepted. Responsibility for gas, electrical and water hygiene 
safety are shared between the in-house team and the corporate contract and any 
of the actions above when implemented will mean that this will naturally fall in 
place. We will however make sure that these key items are given increased status 
in our compliance checks. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

13.  The Head of Engineering and Projects should 
ensure that all water management tasks are set 
out within the Programmed Maintenance 
Schedules. 

Recommendation accepted. We will add additional PPMs to the appropriate CAFM 
system as per the new process outlined in Recommendation 1. 

Responsible Officer: Cornell Farrell Implementation Date: 31/05/2021 

14.  The Principal should ensure that the Guildhall 
School's Management Information Dashboard 
is presented to Members of the School's 
Executive Board, on a quarterly basis. 

Recommendation accepted. This will play a key part in evaluating performance 
against the new Business Recovery Plan and Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

 

Responsible Officer: Graeme Hood Implementation Date: 30/06/2021 

P
age 21



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Guildhall School of Music and Drama - Medium Term Financial Planning 

 Prepared by: Martha Franco-Murillo Issue Date: 10 February 2021 Assurance Rating: GREEN 

 

 

Executive Summary 

Background 

The School is in the process of developing its Medium-Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP).  The process began in the summer 2020 and the final 
MTFP is expected to be completed and reported to BoG in February 
2021. 
 
The purpose of this review was to provide assurance on the adequacy 
of the approach to preparing the plan and the process followed.  This 
audit did not seek to confirm the accuracy of the MTPF or the 
individual assumptions behind the final figures.  
 
Scope 

The objectives of this Internal Audit review were to provide assurance 
that: 

• A timetable for the creation, review and sign off of the School's 
MTFP is in place with responsibilities clearly defined and 
discharged effectively.  

• An effective approach to developing the School’s MTFP is in place, 
including a clear and transparent process that considers key 
budget holders’ contribution.  

• Appropriate assumptions are made as part of the planning process 
and these are clearly documented.  

• The process for developing the MTFP ensures effective alignment 
between the MTFP and the key strategic objectives and priorities 
of the school. 

 

Summary 

The Audit review found that: 

▪ The school has adopted an effective approach to developing 
the MTFP, including a clear and transparent process that 
incorporates key budget holders’ contributions.  

▪ There is, however, no formal timetable for the creation, 
review and sign off the School's MTFP and responsibilities are 
not clearly defined, undermining controls to ensure that 
these are discharged effectively.  

▪ The medium-term planning process is drawing on the 
appropriate range of assumptions and these are clearly 
documented. However, it appears that the financial and 
recovery plans are weighted towards increasing income 
rather than achieving sustainable cost reductions, which 
carries a degree of risk.  It is important therefore that 
progress is monitored very closely.   

▪ The process for developing the MTFP ensures effective 
alignment between the MTFP and the key strategic objectives 
and priorities of the school.  The School’s Strategic Plan is 
currently under review to reflect critical priorities that have 
emerged as a result of Covid 19 and its impact on the School 
activities and financial outlook.   This will be reflected in the 
second phase of the MTFP. 

 

  

P
age 22



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Guildhall School of Music and Drama - Medium Term Financial Planning 

 Prepared by: Martha Franco-Murillo Issue Date: 10 February 2021 Assurance Rating: GREEN 

 

 

Section 2: Management Action Plan 

Recommendation Management Response 

15.  A timetable for the creation, review and 
sign off of the School's MTFP, including 
clear definition of responsibilities 
should be drawn up, approved and 
disseminated to key stakeholders. 

 The second round of meetings with Vice Principals to identify efficiency savings that can be 
maintained for the long term will be concluded by early March, and the findings presented to 
Senior Management Team in mid-March. A projected timeline for implementation of the 
identified savings will be included in the paper presented at that meeting. The setting of a 
timeline for the wider aim to generate new revenue streams will be the responsibility of the 
workshops developing the projects identified on the Business Recover Plan  

Responsible Officer: Principal, Group 
Accountant 

Implementation Date: 30/06/2021 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



Appendix 3 

Schedule of GSMD Overdue High Priority Recommendations as at April 2021  
 

Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

1. Student Affairs (MK 2808) - Review of service 
provision to provide ongoing assurance that delivery 
is effective and represents value for money. 

Student Affairs management should ensure that: 

Periodic service reviews are undertaken, considering 
alternative delivery models where appropriate;  

Such reviews should be documented to demonstrate 
the process followed and the outcome, including 
relevant cost implications to facilitate approval by an 
appropriate party;  

The impact of any delivery model changes implemented 
should be monitored and reported to an appropriate 
forum such as the Operations Board. 

Amber 30/09/19 30/06/20 Internal Audit Comment 
As per last update report: Partial 
implementation has been 
demonstrated.  A revised target 
timescale is required for demonstration 
of full implementation which is expected 
to be evidenced via the service Annual 
Report. 
 
No Management comment received. 
 

2. Budget-Setting (MK 3432): Final budget 
reconciliation to supporting documentation.   

A reconciliation of the final budget to supporting 
documentation should be performed to ensure that the 
budget has been correctly set.   
 
All versions of the budget, calculations and 
amendments should also be stored in one location so 
that any variances can be investigated and understood. 
 

Amber 31/07/20 31/05/21 Internal Audit Comment: 
The previous revised target date of 
31/01/2021 has been revised to 
31/05/2021. 
 
Management Comment: 
A revised budget reflecting the School’s 
commitment to finding the 12% savings 
target will be presented to the School’s 
Finance & Resources Committee on 23 
April before going to the School’s Board 
in May.  

P
age 25



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

The reason for omitting some fee waivers from the draft 
budget should be investigated and addressed in the 
future budget-setting process. 

Once approved by the Board, the 
revised budget will be uploaded to 
CBIS and a copy of the budget with 
supporting working documents will be 
saved in a central folder as a backup 
for the final approved budget for the 
year. 

 

P
age 26



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 

Introduction 

1. This Charter sets out the purpose, authority, and responsibility of the City Corporation’s
Internal Audit function, prepared in accordance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) (2017) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN).

2. The Charter is reviewed annually and presented to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee for approval.

3. The Internal Audit, Risk Management and Anti-Fraud functions at the City of London
Corporation are provided to a number of bodies, including the City of London Police
(excluding risk management), the Barbican Centre, the Guildhall School of Music and
Drama, and the City Corporation’s Independent Schools. Where reference is made to the
City Corporation, these bodies will be deemed to be included in the objectives and
requirements of this Charter.

Role of Internal Audit 

4. The City of London Corporation has adopted the PSIAS mandatory definition of internal
auditing, as specified by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors’ International
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF):

“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting (advisory) 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps the 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes.” 

5. Internal Audit seeks to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based
and objective assurance, advice and insight, specifically:

▪ Assessing whether all significant risks are identified and reported appropriately to
Members and Senior Leadership

▪ Assessing the design and operation of key controls to determine whether they are
effective at mitigating significant risks

▪ Challenging Senior Leadership to improve the effectiveness of governance, risk
management and internal controls by providing assurance over the effectiveness of
the first and second line of defence functions.

Scope and Purpose 

6. The scope of Internal Audit work is unrestricted and is based on Internal Audit’s
independent assessment of the key risks faced by the City of London Corporation and
how effectively these risks are being managed.

7. Internal Audit may undertake assurance projects at the request of Audit and Risk
Management Committee or the Audit (Sub) Committees of the institutions. In addition,

APPENDIX 4

Page 27



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 

Internal Audit may undertake lessons learned reviews following significant adverse 
events.  

8. Internal Audit validates that management actions arising from audits have sustainably
remediated the control weaknesses identified.

9. The Team provides advice and guidance to management on governance, risk and control
and may engage with the City’s Corporate and Departmental change projects providing
expert independent and objective advice on the design of internal controls. The Head of
Audit and Risk Management will ensure that the independence of future Internal Audit
assurance work is not compromised through this activity.

Independence and Authority 

10. Internal Audit receives its authority from the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
this Committee will fulfil the functions of the “board”, as defined in the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standard.

11. The Internal Audit function has unrestricted access to all Corporation records and
information, both manual and computerised, cash, stores and other Corporation
property or assets it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. Internal Audit may
enter City Corporation property and has unrestricted access to all locations and officers
where necessary on demand and without prior notice. Right of access to other bodies
funded by the Corporation should be set out in the conditions of funding.

12. Although line-managed by the Chamberlain, the Head of Audit and Risk Management
has direct access to the Town Clerk, Comptroller and City Solicitor, the Chairman of
Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Chairmen of the Audit (Sub)
Committees (or equivalent) for those bodies under the remit of the City Corporation.

13. In addition to reporting formally to Members at Audit and Risk Management Committee
meetings, the Head of Audit and Risk Management has access to all Members of City of
London Committees in the reporting and discussion of Internal Audit work.

14. All Internal Audit staff are responsible for being independent, objective, and
constructive in the conduct of their work and avoiding conflicts of interest and personal,
business or other issues that may impair impartiality.

Head of Audit and Risk Management Responsibilities 

15. The Head of Audit and Risk Management fulfils the role of the Chief Audit Executive (as
required by the PSIAS) and is required to provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the system of internal control for the whole Corporation and not limited
to financial controls. In order to achieve this, the Internal Audit function has the
following objectives:

▪ Developing and delivering an audit plan that focuses on the key risks to the City
Corporation, providing assurance that significant risks to the Corporation’s objectives
are being managed and reporting progress on delivery of this plan to Audit and Risk
Management Committee

Page 28



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 

▪ Attending and presenting reports at the relevant Audit and Risk Committees and to
senior management as appropriate. This includes reporting significant findings and
their root causes and providing opinions on the effectiveness on the governance, risk
management and control environment within systems reviewed

▪ Provide assurance to management that the Corporation’s operations are being
conducted in accordance with external regulations, legislation, internal policies and
procedures

▪ Provide advice and support to management to enable an effective control
environment to be maintained

▪ Investigate concerns of irregularity
▪ Accessing additional expertise and resource through the use of third parties e.g.

professional services firms. In appointing third parties the Head of Audit and Risk
Management considers the following factors: competence, independence and
objectivity.

16. The Head of Audit and Risk Management will report on conformance with the PSIAS in
their annual report.  An independent peer review will be undertaken at least every five
years to assess the Internal Audit function’s compliance with these standards.

Standards of Audit Practice 

17. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), which came into effect on 1 April
2013 and most recently revised in 2017 are mandatory for the City of London
Corporation, the service is designed and operates within these.

18. This is also in accordance with the IPPF, which includes the International Standards for
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and the Code of Ethics.

19. Internal Audit officers are required to follow the CIIA’s Code of Ethics which is a
statement of principles and expectations governing behaviour required in the conduct of
internal auditing.

20. In addition, Internal Audit officers must comply with Internal Audit’s policies and
procedures and those of the City Corporation together with any other relevant
professional bodies' standards of conduct.  Auditors must possess the knowledge, skills
and disciplines necessary to discharge their responsibilities.

Additional Responsibilities of the Head of Audit and Risk Management 

21. Provision of Services to Outside Bodies - The City of London Corporation Internal Audit
function provides Internal Audit services under a service level agreement to London
Councils and the Museum of London. In addition, Internal Audit will occasionally provide
assurance to Central Government on the appropriate use of ring-fenced grants or
performance returns where required by grant conditions.

22. Risk Management - Providing risk management support to the City of London by
promoting the consistent use of risk management and ownership of risk at all levels
within the City. Achieved through the development and review of the risk management
framework, including facilitation of the City of London Corporate Risk Register.

Page 29



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 

23. Anti-Fraud and Corruption - Promoting fraud awareness and maintaining an effective
anti-fraud and corruption function, acting as a central function for the investigation of
irregularities and, where criminal investigation is considered appropriate, to liaise
directly with the Police and advise departments on such matters. The Section plays a
specific anti-fraud and investigation role in relation to Housing Tenancy Fraud and the
investigation of serious whistleblowing concerns raised through the City of London
Whistleblowing policy.

24. Independent assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Risk Management and
Anti-Fraud and Corruption arrangements will be provided to senior management and
the Audit and Risk Management Committee through periodic external assessment.

Updated 8 March 2021 

Page 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Internal Audit Update
	Appendix 1: 2020-21 Guildhall School Audit Plan Progress
	Appendix 2: Recently Finalised Audit Outcomes
	Appendix 3: Overdue High Priority Recommendations
	Appendix 4: Internal Audit Charter 2021
	6 Internal Audit Charter
	Appendix 1 - Audit Charter 2021



	8 Non Public Minutes
	9 Risk Register
	Appendix 1: Summary Risk Register
	Appendix 2: Risks & Actions progress report
	Appendix 3: Detailed Risk Register


